
CITY OF TONKA BAY 
ITEM NO.  4A 

 

  MINUTES 
 TONKA BAY CITY COUNCIL 
 REGULAR MEETING 

June 10, 2008 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 The regular semi-monthly meeting of the Tonka Bay City Council was called to 
order at 7:00 p.m.   
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 Members present: Mayor LaBelle, Councilmembers Marceau, Tessness, Folley, 
and De La Vega.  Also present were City Administrator Loftus, City Attorney Penberthy, 
and Public Works Superintendent Kluver. 
 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 De La Vega moved to approve the agenda as submitted.  Folley seconded the 
motion.  Ayes 5.  Motion carried. 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA 
 Tessness moved to approve the consent agenda approving Accounts 
Payable and minutes of regular meeting of May 27, 2008 as amended:  Page 4, 
under De La Vega’s report, the second sentence should be amended to read:  “The 
Council is invited to a meeting on June 11 to review the proposed budget.”    De La 
Vega seconded the motion.  Ayes 5.  Motion carried. 
 
5. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR 
None  
 
6. SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 A. Lake Minnetonka Conservation District (LMCD) Budget Review –   
Doug Babcock, LMCD Representative stated the proposed budget shows a significant 
increase.  The majority is due to the funding of a program to curb milfoil through chemical 
applications.  The Board felt this should be funded in the budget rather than paid for 
through the use of Save the Lake Fund.  De La Vega did not agree.  He stated we are at 
an experimental stage, and he believed it should not be funded through the budget.  He 
asked if an analysis has been done of what the costs will look like in the next five or ten 
years.  Babcock stated the intent was to study the impact on three bays only.  Funding in 
the beginning was provided by residents of the three bays as well as funding from the 
DNR.   Tessness asked if there is an overall savings of herbicide versus harvesting.  
Babcock stated it is not an apples-to-apples comparison.  Harvesting is not a totally 
effective solution.  The LMCD is trying to putting the issue to bed of whether chemical 
application is the most cost effective on a large scale.  Tessness believed the chemical 
applications would work long term.  Babcock stated the plan is to treat three bays.  If the 



City of Tonka Bay 
Regular City Council Meeting 
June 10, 2008  Page 2 of 6 
 
 
treatments appear to be working by the end of the boating season, the plan is to go 
forward with the 2009 plan.  He stated there is a lot of citizen support.  De La Vega asked 
if the Save the Lake Fund consists of voluntary contributions.  Babcock stated that it is.  
De La Vega asked what the rationale is to use this fund versus levying the cities for the 
cost of the applications.  Babcock stated the strategy is to find out if chemical treatment 
works and then find the funding.  De La Vega stated he is all for keeping the lake clean 
and free of milfoil infestation, but the way to get there has not been addressed.  He stated 
there doesn’t appear to be a five-year perspective.  Babcock stated it is a three bay per 
year plan for the next five years.  It could be funded by Save the Lake Fund.  No decision 
has been made yet about after that time.    He stated he encouraged the Board to fund the 
program through the Save the Lake Fund at the previous LMCD budget hearing.  De La 
Vega stated he does not agree with budgeting for the treatment.  He believed the Save the 
Lake Fund should pay for the treatment.  Folley stated there is a question about whether 
the chemicals work.  He stated the other cities also agree the $30,000 shouldn’t come out 
of the budget.  He stated he would like to see the minutes from the meeting on May 29.  
He stated he would like to hear if there is a long term goal – that the budget is double digit 
now but will decrease in the future.  LaBelle stated a healthy lake is important.  If the 
treatments work, it will be a springboard to look for other funding sources.  He stated he 
would like to see it fund from other sources.  He agreed with De La Vega the funding 
should come from the Save the Lake fund.  Babcock stated this is not an open-ended kind 
of project.  He stated he would like to wait until the end of the year to decide whether the 
money should be spent.  If the treatments don’t work, then it shouldn’t continue.  He 
agreed other funding sources are a possibility.  De La Vega stated he is not opposed to 
the program just the source of funding.  LaBelle thanked Babcock for attending the 
meeting tonight.  Babcock stated the LMCD Board will certify the budget at either the June 
11 or June 25 meetings.  Folley stated on May 29, there was discussion of having an 
alternate when Babcock is not able to attend meetings.  Babcock stated the state statute 
must be changed in order to do that. Folley stated they also recommended meetings 
during the day be held in the evenings so more people can attend.  De La Vega asked 
what the logic is behind the increase in prosecution fees and the decrease in fines. De La 
Vega moved to use the Save the Lake Fund for milfoil eradication.  Folley seconded 
the motion.  Ayes 5.  Motion carried.  Babcock stated he knows where the City Council 
stands and asked if he should then vote against the budget if the funding source is not 
changed.  LaBelle stated that is the intent of the motion. 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING 
None 
 
8. OLD BUSINESS 
 A. Application for Special Permit – Dock at 325 Lakeview Avenue 
(Continued) – Loftus stated Jon Davis owns the properties at 325 and 335 Lakeview 
Avenue.  His request for a special dock permit was continued from the previous meeting to 
allow the City Attorney time to write an opinion.  Mr. Davis’ attorneys are present this 
evening on behalf of his client.  LaBelle asked the applicant’s attorneys if there were any 



City of Tonka Bay 
Regular City Council Meeting 
June 10, 2008  Page 3 of 6 
 
 
comments on the attorney’s letter.  Marceau stated it appears after reading Mr. 
Penberthy’s memo there is no action required.  Tessness was in agreement with Marceau.  
For the record, Penberthy stated one option is to allow one dock with two slips. De La 
Vega stated the fact the property owner would be the neighbor of this dock makes it easier 
for him to consider approving.  He agreed it should be allowed but as a non-conforming 
structure.  LaBelle stated he finds fault with the ordinances.  He believed the property 
owner should be allowed the dock as a non-conforming use as a riparian right.  He was in 
favor of allowing it as a non-conforming use due to the reasons outlined in the attorney’s 
letter.  Tessness believed there is nothing the applicant is doing that would go against the 
true intent of the ordinance.  He supported the request.  Folley didn’t think the amount a 
property owner pays in taxes should determine what they can do.  The lot is very small, 
and a house cannot be built there.  Loftus asked if the applicant’s legal counsel could 
agree to submit a drawing showing the length of the dock and placement for verification 
purposes.  A representative of the dock company stated the dock would meet the ten feet 
setback, and he would provide the diagram in the morning.  Loftus asked how long the 
dock would be.  It was noted the dock would be sixty feet.  LaBelle moved to grant Jon 
Davis the right to put in a dock as a non-conforming use with two slips subject to 
receipt of a drawing of the location and length.  Marceau seconded the motion.  
Ayes 4-1.  Folley voted against the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS 
 A. Parking Request for 175 Woodpecker Ridge Road – Loftus stated the 
Wentzells at 175 Woodpecker Ridge Road have requested parking on Woodpecker Ridge 
Road on Saturday, June 21 from 3-9 p.m. during a family graduation.  Loftus stated if 
considered, the vehicles should park on the bituminous area only.  LaBelle asked how 
long of an area the berm is.  Kluver stated it is approximately 700 feet.  Marceau asked if 
there is something that Public Works can put in the area temporarily to protect the berm.  
De La Vega stated it is a very tight area for parking on Woodpecker Ridge Road.  LaBelle 
asked the residents to keep an eye on where vehicles are parking on that date.  Tessness 
supported the request.  Marceau moved to approve the request of Mark and 
Rosemary Wentzell, for Saturday, June 21 and to direct Public Works to place 
caution tape along the berm area.  Folley seconded the motion.  Ayes 5.  Motion 
carried. 
 
 B. Drainage Request at 355 Lakeview Avenue – Loftus stated Chad Larson 
has requested the City Council discuss the drainage at 355 Lakeview Avenue.  His 
request states his main concerns are the neighbor’s drainage swales and storm water 
runoff from Lakeview Avenue onto his property.  Loftus stated she and the City Engineer 
had an opportunity to review the area in question, and the city engineer’s comments are 
included with the staff report.  She stated recommended options have been provided for 
the Council’s consideration.  Chadd Larson, 355 Lakeview Avenue stated this has been 
an issue for the last fifteen years resulting from the development of the property at 345 
Lakeview Avenue.  He provided pictures taken in 1994 showing what the property looked 
like before it was developed.  The house was proposed to be constructed several feet 



City of Tonka Bay 
Regular City Council Meeting 
June 10, 2008  Page 4 of 6 
 
 
above their property which was an issue for them.  The city required drainage swales be 
constructed on both sides of the property.  They were not installed according to the 
requirements.  He stated in 2005, the property owner installed a drainage swale and filled 
it with river rock.  There are sediment flow problems in between the rock.  He stated there 
are currently serious maintenance concerns with the swale.  He stated he also has 
concerns with the Lakeview Avenue drainage in general.  He stated the City Engineer 
suggested the area be observed during a rainfall event.  He distributed photos showing the 
area after a rainfall event the previous week and discussed ponding areas.  LaBelle stated 
the City Engineer would like to see the area observed and photographed during a rain 
event.  He also noted the Engineer recommended the driveway at 355 Lakeview Avenue 
be repaired.  He asked Larson what the intent would be for that to happen.  Larson 
responded they are willing to consider it.  His main concern is whether raising the driveway 
is the correct solution to handle drainage, because the garage floor is very low.  He 
believed it is a separate issue from the drainage swale issue.  LaBelle agreed it is a 
different issue; however, the City Engineer is recommending the driveway be repaired.  
Larson stated raising the driveway would direct more runoff into their garage which has a 
lower elevation than the road.  He agreed the driveway is part of the issue, but it is not as 
simple as just repaving the driveway.  He would be willing to work with the City Engineer 
on it.  LaBelle stated there is an inter-relation between all the recommendations the City 
Engineer has made.  LaBelle asked if the City Engineer would provide the rain event 
observation/photography.  Loftus believed the photographs provided tonight satisfy this 
option.  Tessness didn’t believe the rocks in the swale were the issue.  He didn’t see the 
driveway as an issue with the neighbor but more of a maintenance issue.  Larson stated 
the swale is located in close proximity to their first floor elevation and sliding glass door.  
LaBelle stated we aren’t going to resolve this issue tonight.  The determination needs to be 
made whether this is a city problem or an issue between neighbors.  Loftus recommended 
it be continued to the July 8 meeting.  Larson suggested a bituminous curb be constructed 
on Lakeview Avenue to help keep the storm drainage within the public right-of-way.  
LaBelle stated he will ask the Public Works Superintendent to comment on that for the July 
meeting.  Larson also recommended drain tile be installed on the fire lane right-of-way. He 
believed the majority of the ponding is being caused by public drainage. 
 
 C. Hennepin County Joint Cooperation Agreement – Loftus stated 
Hennepin County is requesting the city’s cooperation in their efforts to obtain federal HUD 
monies.  They are asking the city to renew their joint cooperation agreement through 
adoption of the attached resolution.  Marceau moved to adopt Resolution 08-14 
adopting the resolution authorizing execution of the joint cooperation agreement.  
Folley seconded the motion.  Ayes – Marceau, Folley, Tessness, De La Vega and 
LaBelle.  Motion carried. 
 
 D. Excelsior Fire District (EFD) Budget Review – Loftus stated the 
preliminary draft of the EFD 2009 budget has been attached for review.  A joint meeting 
will be held on June 11 to review the budget.  An increase of 1.96% is proposed which 
reflects an overall increase for Tonka Bay of 6.08%.  De La Vega stated there was some 



City of Tonka Bay 
Regular City Council Meeting 
June 10, 2008  Page 5 of 6 
 
 
refinancing of bonds that resulted in some savings of interest.  The 1.96% increase does 
not subtract out that amount first.  It was not the intent to have the savings put into the 
budget.  De La Vega discussed concerns about contributions to the retirement fund when 
it is already 110% funded.  Issues with the capital improvement plan will also be discussed 
at the joint meeting.  He invited the Council to attend the meeting and bring their questions 
on June 11. 
 
 E. South Lake Minnetonka Police Department (SLMPD) Strategic Planning 
– LaBelle stated he was concerned about the lack of a plan for capital improvements at 
the public safety building.  It also bothered him that there are times when there is only one 
officer available to handle an emergency at times.  He believed the department is under 
staffed.  De La Vega stated he, Tessness and Marceau attended a recent strategic 
planning session.  He discussed his concerns about the increase to Tonka Bay’s budget 
for police services.  He foresaw our budget doubling within eight years.  He stated he 
would like to see a coordinated effort between the police and fire to fund capital 
improvements for the building.  De La Vega agreed one police officer could be added, and 
then wait and see how that works.  Tessness stated it is ridiculous to only have one officer 
on duty at night.  There should always be two officers scheduled.  Marceau agreed there 
should be a coordinated effort between police and fire.  Folley stated he is also concerned 
about the 45% budget increase.  LaBelle stated the next SLMPD Coordinating Committee 
meeting is June 25. 
 
 F. Schedule Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Worksession – LaBelle 
stated a worksession is proposed for June 24 at 5:30 p.m. to discuss capital 
improvements. 
  

10. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR 
None 
 
11. REPORTS 
 A. Loftus – Loftus stated she attended a joint meeting with MCWD and the Met 
Council to discuss the city’s Comprehensive Plan.  They are requesting a local water 
management plan be written.  Work will begin on it this summer.  The EFD business expo 
will be on June 19 from 10 a.m. to 1 p.m.  The quarterly newsletter and consumer 
confidence report have been mailed. 
 B. Marceau – Finance, Marinas, - Marceau stated he and Loftus met with the 
County to review RFPs for the proposed trail along County Road 19. 
 C. Tessness – Buildings, Building Inspection, LMCD, Fire Lanes and 
Municipal Docks – no report 
 D. Folley - Animal Control, LMCC, Technology – no report 
 E. De La Vega - EFD, Parks, Sanitation, and Southshore Senior/ 
Community Center – De La Vega stated the RFPs for the Southshore Community/Senior 
Center are due on June 13. 
 F. Attorney's Report – no report 



City of Tonka Bay 
Regular City Council Meeting 
June 10, 2008  Page 6 of 6 
 
 
 G. LaBelle - Public Works and SLMPD – no report 
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
 There being no further business, it was moved by Marceau to adjourn the meeting 
at 8:40 p.m.  De La Vega seconded the motion.  Ayes 5.  Motion carried. 
 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Clerk 

 


